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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022 1

The Directors, who act as Trustees for charitable law purposes, present their report together with the consolidated financial
statements of the charity and its subsidiary for the year ended 30 November 2022 which are also prepared to meet the
requirements for a directors’ report and accounts for Companies Act purposes. For the purpose of this report, the Directors
are referred to as Trustees.

The financial statements comply with the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charities Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended), the Companies Act 2006, Articles of Association, and Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102).

The Society has a subsidiary undertaking, Festival Fringe Trading Ltd. The respective activities of the Society and the
subsidiary are described below, and together are referred to as "The Society".

Chief Executive Officer's Report
What a difference a year makes.

Twelve months ago, we were busy evaluating the first post-covid festival; Fringe 2021 was a much-reduced affair compared
to the Fringe in 2019. Of course, the phrase “post-covid” was premature optimism; the omicron variants would gain
prominence in early 2022, making the likelihood of the 2022 Fringe feel even more remote. Yet somehow, against what
felt like impossible odds, a small miracle took place: a fully formed, physical Fringe actually happened.

It felt joyous and healing to have the Fringe back and live, to see creatives from across Scotland joined by artists from all
parts of the UK and around the world. We had no idea if anyone would show up, but they did and it felt more important
than ever for catharsis, perspective and collective assembly. This year's festival was miraculous, pulled off by the sheer
determination and effort of the Fringe creative community.

The festival's 75th anniversary took place in a radically changed world, and set the context to re-evaluate what the Fringe
is, what it was, and what it needs to be. In June we published a new, collective vision for the festival — a rallying cry for the
Fringe's many varied participants and supporters to collaborate on reinventing a festival true to our shared values of
openness, care for each other and love for the performing arts, rooted in a desire to give anyone a stage and everyone a
seat. We are set on delivering this shared vision — but the challenges are unrelenting. If artists can't afford to be part of it
- if the availability and cost of accommodation is untenable, on top of the cost-of-living crisis — then it is impossible to be
inclusive, open, welcoming to all. The Fringe and our sister festivals are eager and poised to be part of the national
recovery that is needed, but miracles are one-offs. We can only keep bringing the magic if we have the belief, support and
a coilaborative mindset from local and national govemment.

The Fringe can't happen without the collective passion and effort of a cast of thousands, including artists, audiences,
venues, media, staff, crew, sponsors, elected officials and the city of Edinburgh itself. On behalf of myself and the Fringe
Society | want to say a massive thank you to everyone who had a hand in making this year's festival possible, in the
face of seemingly insurmountable odds. If the last few years (or indeed, the last few months) have taught us anything,
it's that nothing should be taken for granted - just because something's happened for three quarters of a century, that
doesn’t mean it can continue to do so without the sustained effort and support of everyone involved.
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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022 ) 2
2022 Key Highlights

Topic Achievements

Artist affordability ¢ In recognition of the financial strain across the whole Fringe eco-system, the

Fringe Society returned £0.5Million to the fringe artist and venue economy
through revenue share of income from fees..
¢ Maintained frozen registration fees since 2008, real time saving of 27%.

Venue sustainability e Secured £1.275Mn to support venue producers to deliver against significant
operational uncertainty and deliver against key ambitions for Fair Work in
Scotland.

Street Events e Secured funding and sponsorship to ensure this vital, family friendly and free to
access activity returned for residents, visitors and performers.

Edinburgh’s residents e Secured funds to deliver Fringe Days Out - our flagship engagement

programme for community groups across Edinburgh — and our work in
Edinburgh’s schools, with over 3,300 Edinburgh residents choosing and
enjoying shows at the Fringe through our engagement activities.

Climate Action ¢ Reduced programme print to 175,000 copies

2022 festival successfully implemented e-ticketing across the fringe.

Objectives and Activities
The purpose of the Society is the continual development and improvement of the world's largest performing arts festival,

where any person can participate creatively or as an audience member without constraint. We live by our vision “to give
anyone a stage, and everyone a seat.” We promote the Edinburgh Festival Fringe locally, nationally and internationally.

The Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society does not rely on volunteers to deliver any services to participants and audiences,
and all staff employed by the Fringe Society and direct service providers (such as security and cleaning staff) are paid at
least the Real Living Wage (as defined by the Living Wage Foundation and the Scottish Poverty Alliance).

The Fringe Society relies on the voluntary contribution of the board of Directors to set policy and ensure the successful
delivery of its strategic objectives.

Mission Statement

The Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society is a charity and fundamentally exists to:

« Advise, support and encourage all participants;

* Provide comprehensive information services, and navigational tools including the website, programme, ticketing, to its
participants and the public; and

e Promote the entire Fringe, in the context of Edinburgh and its other festivals, in Scotland, around the UK and

throughout the rest of the world.
The Fringe is globally recognised as the largest, open-access performing arts festival in the world.

There are many contributors to the Fringe, and when we all come together, we help put the performing arts on the map.
To mark our 75th anniversary year and ensure the Fringe can evolive to meet future changes and challenges, we consulted
with stakeholders from across the festival from artists to venues, residents to government bodies — to create a shared

vision and set of values.

The vision is “to give anyone a stage and everyone a seat”. Rooted in equality and inclusiveness, this will inspire us all
to pull in the same direction.
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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022 3
Our three values will guide the behaviours and decisions of everyone involved with the Fringe, giving us a shared focus
and enabling the festival to be the best version of itself:

. Celebrate performing arts
. Be open to all
Look out for each other

This vision is accompanied by six Fringe development goals. Each sets ambitious targets designed to ensure the long-
term survival and renewal of the festival.

1. Thriving artists
Be the best place in the world for artists to perform and the best platform for talent to emerge.

EFFS will work to secure and distribute funds for artists, showcase and develop the Fringe marketplace nationally and
internationally, ensure artists are valued and the Fringe community, current and alumni, celebrate and champion the

Fringe.

2. Fair work
Eradicate any remaining unfair or exploitative work conditions at the Fringe.

EFFS will champion best practise, influencing positive change in wages, working conditions and positive working
environments for all, as well as supporting skills development across a range of areas.

3. Climate action
Become a carbon net zero event by 2030.

EFFS will support the collection and analysis of useful data to inform decision making for Fringe venues and companies,
as well as reducing the impact of EFFS’ own services and activities. We'li also seek to make a positive impact through the
planting of 75,000 native trees, working with specialist local providers to ensure this is a genuine contribution towards long

term carbon reduction.

4. Equitable Fringe .
Ensure that who you are and where you are from is not a barrier to attending or performing at the Edinburgh Fringe.

EFFS will continue to develop new ways to break down barriers for those who want to participate, including improving
Access, continuing to develop Fringe Days Out (in collaboration with our partners), challenge the cost of participation and
accommodation, and offer targeted services and support for marginalised voices.

5. Good citizenship
The Fringe, a force for good in and for the city of Edinburgh.

EFFS will begin development of a free to access family event, alongside ongoing development of Fringe Days Out and a
range of other community engagement programmes. EFFS will also continue to work towards the long-held plan for a new
home, which will serve as a community hub for the Fringe alongside offering local artists and citizens space to engage and

participate.

6. Digital evolution
Enhance the live Fringe experience by ensuring a world- class digital experience.

EFFS will focus on the development of a world leading access ticketing experience, alongside the continuous improvement

of the services and systems provided to a range of participants and audiences. EFFS will continue to grow the year round
communication and conversation with artists to ensure support and services can be offered to their fullest.

Over the coming years the Fringe Society will work towards the realisation of these goals in collaboration with the widest
range of Fringe stakeholders, to ensure the long-term future and relevance and the Edinburgh Festival Fringe.

‘FS Financial Statements 2022 Board Approved.pdf [2c0ee189-afe2-4e59-a18d-569ed1e52222] Page: 5/ 42



EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED : 4

. Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022

Our Activities : .
While Covid-19 continues to have a significant impact on the Festival and our organisation, the core role of the Fringe Society is

unchanged, to provide support and services to those who participate in and those who attend the Edinburgh Festival Fringe. Our
focus for 2022 was to plan for the return of the Fringe, prioritising the services core to our mission, and balancing the ongoing risk
and uncertainty from the impact of the pandemic and the global economic crisis.

Our services address our three Key Mission Statement priorities and include:

» advice, support and guidance to artists, companies and venues who wish to participate in the Fringe. This
includes regular 'how-to' roadshows and one-to-one conversations (in person and through digital channels) -
from choosing your venue to marketing your show - with artists and companies, locally, nationally
and internationally; In addition to a slate of online tools including our artists network platform Fringe Connect,
downloadable resources on every aspect of Fringe participation, Marketplace our industry platform etc.

« professional development and arts industry services, including training, workshops and shared learning
opportunities, media and marketing advice and signposting and networking opportunities to onward touring;

* planning and delivery of Made In Scotiand, the annual showcase of the best of Scottish music, drama and
dance. And support for some 17 international showcases bringing selected works to the Fringe each year.

« introduction and liaison services for media, arts industry and other professional services - the Fringe Society
is a central information point for those seeking to produce, buy or develop work presented at the Fringe, and
the accreditation services we provide offer an intermediary to ensure artists and arts industry are able to

find one another; :

* provision of information and ticketing services for all shows at the Fringe, via our website, mobile devices,
phone sales and in our box offices at 180 High St and other city locations

o marketing the Fringe to audiences across the globe, including media, PR and above the line marketing
materials, through our year round branding, media output and annual Fringe marketing campaign;

« advocacy and lobbying for the wider arts and culture sector in Scotland and the UK, alongside specific
activities to ensure local and national governmental support for the Fringe in its own right; and

« fundraising and other income generation to support the delivery of key services and ensure the sustainability
of the Fringe and the Fringe Society.

e leaming and access programmes to remove barriers to local community groups, schools and those with.
Access needs.

In 2022 we focused on ensuring a balance between the ongoing uncertainty around live events and the need to retain digital
engagement, with the emerging needs of the festival in its live retum.

Key Performance Indicators (KPI)

Secure the future of the Fringe Society and develop new models of income;

Increased political engagement and lobbying for the future of the Fringe and our stakeholders;

Develop new ways to engage and support artists and audiences to return to the Fringe;

Maintain the value of the Edinburgh Festival Fringe to international Arts Industry;

Delivery of the core services of the Fringe Saciety, aligned to the strategic priorities established in the Fringe
Blueprint and Fringe Development Goals.

The following sections directly reflect on the above KPIs and how we measure and have delivered against the above bullet points.
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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED 5

Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022

Achievements and Performance

Relating to KP): Secure the future of the Fringe Society and develop new models of income

Affordability and giving back
Through the revised revenue share of fees and the Fringe Venue and Producer Fund (see below), the Fringe Society secured

£1.775Mn in additional cash revenue for the Fringe, with 100% of this revenue distributed directly to venues and artists.

We understand and share many of the concerns of artists, venues, media, industry and residents about the cost of participation at
the Fringe and the barriers this presents for many people. While many cost factors are outwith our control (such as accommodation,
transport, etc) we have used the levers that are available to us and undertaken a number of steps to keep the costs we can control
as low as possible. Fringe Registration fees have not changed since 2008, a 15 year freeze, and commission has remained at 4%
since 2013. The actual cost of delivering our services to the festival's wide and varied stakeholders has risen steadily over the
years, meaning the Fringe Society is now subsidising these direct costs by around 40%. As well as shielding Fringe artists and
venues from the increased cost of service, the Fringe Society also rebated 100% of handling fees on a proportion of sales to those
for whom we sold a majority of tickets, resulting in £500K being retumed to the Fringe economy.

New models of Income
The pandemic and the economic impact that followed continues to impact on the Fringe and the Fringe Society, forcing us to rethink

and remodel our charity’s financial management and revenue generation. The Fringe Society remains in challenging economic
circumstances and is in receipt of little public funding to support its core delivery and services. Without new models of income and
financial planning, and new ways to increase investment and income for the Fringe we cannot build the degree of assurance and
certainty to the ecosystem of the Fringe that is essential to its long-term viability and relevance. Lobbying at a local, national and
UK level continued, making the continued case for ongoing support from funders and agencies who recognise the Fringe as a vital
part of the cultural landscape of Scotiand and the UK.

We recognise that reliance on funding only is not prudent for an arganisation of our nature, so we sought out income generation
opportunities alongside ways to distribute this income into the Fringe ecology. Additional revenues were generated through the
agency box office service (180 Box Office) who delivered box office services to high profile events, including Van Gogh Alive.
Alongside this we reviewed sponsorship opportunities and explored new models for sponsor engagement away from the headline
sponsor of Fringe Street Events and into activations centred on improving the audience and artist experience.

Funding and Support
EXPO funding for 2022 secured the delivery of the Made in Scotland showcase, which saw a bumper year of shows, including

those who had been unable to present their work in 2020 and 2021. PLACE funding enabled the ongaing delivery of key
engagement and learning programmes, and supported the services delivered by our Artist Services team. Both of these
programmes support industry, young people, Edinburgh’s residents and Scottish and local artists to participate and engage with

the Fringe.

Funding for project delivery was secured from British Council, Screen Scotland and DCMS for digital artist and industry engagement,
and Baillie Gifford supported the delivery of Fringe Days Out — our flagship community engagement programme - and the ongoing
work we do with schools and young people.

Vital to the return of the Fringe was the return of the Fringe Street Events, an iconic and much-loved part of the Fringe that is free
for everyone. Funding from Event Scotland, the City of Edinburgh Council and PLACE was supported through partnerships with
TikTok, St James Quarter, Nuveen and IRN BRU to ensure the management and delivery of a full range of events across the City,
including the High St and the Mound Precinct.

In response to the Omicron wave in late 2021/early 2022, Scottish Government funding was made available through the Pivotal
Event Business Fund and additional PLACE funding. Additional PLACE funding supported the Fringe Street Events, festival
delivery (including staff) for the Fringe Society, and the Fringe Venue and Producer Resilience Fund (see below). These funds
supported the core delivery of the Fringe Society and provided a much-needed lifeline to ensure the success of the Fringe in 2022

and build future resilience.

Save the Fringe Campaign - Give Someone a Stage

In 2021 the Fringe Society launched a fundraising initiative to support the Fringe and the Fringe Society. With an ambition to raise
£7.5Mn in five years, the Fringe Society has undertaken extensive groundwork to ensure donors and supporters can engage
effectively to maximise donations. The aim is to draw in new funds to the Fringe to support the Fringe itself and the work of the
Fringe Saciety, aligned to the Fringe Development Goals published in 2022. Still suffering from a depleted team and without any
in-house fundraising or development function, the team have done well to absorb some of this responsibility to date, put all the
foundations in place and 2023 will see the first serious effort in increased philanthropic giving and donors as we now have a Head

of Fundraising, a Development Manager, and a small sponsorship team.
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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED 6
Report of the Trustees for the year ended 30 November 2022

Fringe Venue and Producer Resilience Fund
With additional funding secured by the Fringe Society through the PLACE programme, £1.275Mn was made available to venues

and producers to support their 2022 delivery. The fund was open to applications, with four key piliars of delivery central to its criteria
design: Programming, Risk Management, Fair Work and Sustainability. The funds were awarded through a panel including experts
from Creative Scotland, City of Edinburgh Council, Event Scotland and an independent industry panel member — chaired by the

Fringe Society.

- Awards included support for ambitious and diverse creative programming, better deals for artists, improved pay and working
conditions for staff, removing variability of pay for those under 25, underpinning the rising costs of delivery, and schemes to support
artists while in Edinburgh, including subsidised accommaodation, meals and venue fees.

Relating to KPI: Increased political enqgagement and lobbying for the survival of the Fringe and our stakeholders

Advocacy and Lobbying

The Fringe Society uses its convening role to meet regularly with officials at local and national levels to advocate for the needs of
Fringe artists and the festival as a whole. Our development goals set out clearly where investment and collaboration could bring
about positive change, and we use evidence-based data to address areas of concern and seek solutions. One of the most pressing
issues for artists is the depleted stock and rising cost of accommodation; the Society has prioritised this as a matter of urgency by
pulling together local and national agencies and political stakeholders, alongside our sister festivals, to understand the
consequences of policy making and activation, as well as engaging providers directly to increase the stock available exclusively for
participants. We have pushed every route available to us and are also exploring creative solutions such as tented villages and new
transport routes to capacity further afield, but we need a collective approach from national and local agencies with influence/control

over accommodation provision.

MP for Edinburgh, East Tommy Sheppard, hosted a Fringe programme launch event in Westminster on 20 July. Guests were
welcomed by Sir Lindsay Hoyle, Speaker of the House of Commons, and attracted cross-party representation alongside our cultural
stakeholders and supporters; it was also attended by Fringe Society President Phoebe Waller-Bridge and Fringe patron and alumni

Eddie lzzard.

We work with strategic partners to bring about positive change and improvements; in 2022, our partners included:

e The Edinburgh Climate Compact — a sustainability initiative comprising businesses and organisations in Edinburgh, of
which we are a founding member.

e Creative UK (formerly the Creative Industries Federation) — a campaign body lobbying UK Government to reduce visa
restrictions and support the culture sector's recovery over the next three to five years.

* Birds of Paradise — a disabled-led Scottish theatre company advising on accessibility and collaborating on projects and
work that engage disabled artists and audiences.

* Something to Aim For — an organisation providing advocacy and capacity building for artists (primarily working in
performance) from under-represented and marginalised communities.

« Somewhere — an organisation working to improve the visibility and accessibility of LGTBQ+ Fringe work for artists and

audiences.
s Parents in the Performing Arts (PIPA) — an organisation addressing a lack of provision for parents and carers in the

performing arts.

The Fringe Society engages regularly with governments and other influential organisations — at local, national and international
levels — as part of our core commitments: to support artists, venues and all stakeholders on the Fringe, and champion the Fringe
and its vision and values. We continue to ensure that to the best of our ability we represent the voices of thase who make up the
Fringe and that they are heard loud and clear, by providing evidence to the UK and Scottish Parliament, having direct conversations
with paiticial leaders, elected members and funding bodies, and through media engagement. We have worked in partnership with
the Creative Industries Federation to build on UK-wide lobbying for support to the sector, as well as ongoing lobbying to ensure
performance and live event regulations were in tandem with those of the wider tourism and leisure sector upon reopening.

Resilience Group
In 2022 the Scottish Government set up a resilience group to support the Fringe Society, consisting of Creative Scotland, Scottish

Enterprise, Event Scotland and City of Edinburgh Council. This group continued into early 2022 and was integrai to the success of
securing additional PLACE funding for the Fringe and the Fringe Society.
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Fringe President and Patrons
Writer, actor and Fringe alumna Phoebe Waller-Bridge took up the post of Honorary President in 2020, with a clear brief to champion

and promote the Fringe and support our ongoing recovery efforts. Phoebe has been a champion of the Fringe Society and the
Fringe, visiting in 2022 to see work, talk to artists and support the Fringe Society in it's launch of the Vision and Values.

In July we announced Eddie Izzard as the first alumni Patron of the Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society. Eddie first performed at the
Fringe in 1981 and spent more than a decade practising her craft — in sketch comedy, street performance and finally stand-up -
before her career took off. She's now recognised around the world, having played in 45 countries, in four languages, and in venues
like Madison Square Garden and the Hollywood Bowl, as well as appearing in a slew of Hollywood films and TV shows. Eddie is a
global champion for creativity, and a vocal supporter for those starting out — in other words, an ideal ambassador for the Fringe.

Relating to KPI: Develop new ways to engage and support artists and audiences to return to the Fringe

Fringe Buzz
Our aim in celebrating the Fringe is ultimately to help artists — the more attention we draw to the Fringe, the more people will attend

and see shows. To that end, we're delighted that 777 members of the media accredited with our Media Office this year, representing
more than 340 individual outlets from 18 countries around the world (including Australia, Israel, Japan, Pakistan and the US). Our
Chief Executive and senior staff were interviewed on a variety of topics by the likes of the Times, Telegraph, Guardian, BBC Scotland,

STV and Global Radio.

The BBC produced a new feature-length documentary on the history of the Fringe this year. The Fringe, Fame and Me told stories
from some familiar Fringe faces, including Eddie Izzard, Phoebe Waller-Bridge, Michael Palin, Stephen K Amos and Miriam

Margolyes.

Our Fringe Moments project comprised a collection of stories and pictures covering the breadth of the festival’s history, sourced
from artists, audiences and venues, celebrating 75 years of the Fringe. We asked audience members and artists on social media
and our mailing lists to contribute their favourite Fringe memories, and approached some well-known Fringe faces such as Arthur
Smith and our Fringe patron Eddie lzzard (see page 25) to share their reminiscences. We collated these submissions before
publishing them online on Wednesday 24 August, the anniversary of the first ever Fringe performance.

Alongside all of this we used our reach through marketing, social media and bulletins to shout about the Fringe at every opportunity,
sharing shows on Twitter, venue takeovers on Instagram, our TikTok channels, e-bulletins and a vibrant marketing campaign, from
programme to digital advertising — we sought to celebrate the Fringe and all it stands for and encourage old and new audiences to

join us.

Fringe Central
The return of Fringe Central was vital to the support and services we could offer to artists and participants during Fringe

2022. Fringe Central is where artists and Fringe professionals can access in-person services from the Fringe Society during
August. It's where you can find our Arts Industry, Artist Development, Artist Support and Media offices, receive guidance on
polishing your press release and network with peers. This year you could book a one-to-one mental health first aid appointment
with Space to Breathe, one of our 2022 strategic partners.

Fringe Central hosted a programme of 35 free events and discussions focusing on issues significant to the cultural sector, fom
representation and sustainability to the practicalities of making and touring work. These events featured provocations from industry
figures such as newly announced Fringe patron Eddie Izzard, comedian and poet Rob Auton and Fleabag producer Francesca

Moody.

Fringe Central would not have been possible without the support of the St James Centre and TikTok who supported this temporary
home for Fringe Central in a challenging year.

TikTok, the ‘virtual stage of the Fringe’.
In June we announced a partnership with TikTok, recognising its significance as a platform where Fringe artists (whether already

Fringe- experienced or destined for future appearances) can create work and reach a burgeoning new audience. Much like the
Fringe, TikTok provides an open access platform for artists to showcase their work, find their voice and find their community and

fans.

The team at TikTok hosted a series of information sessions, both in person and online, in the weeks leading up to the festival,
giving Fringe artists the tools to make the platform work best for them. A jumbo TikTok screen in the Fringe Shop window showed
posters for artists’shows, increasing their visibility amid the hustle and bustle of the festival, and the taster stage in St Andrew

Square was streamed live on the platform.
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Fringe Connect
Fringe Connect is an online space where Fringe artists and arts industry can exchange ideas and information and create lasting

working relationships. Users can also access year-round online events, archived recordings from past events, and resources and
information relating to opportunities at the Fringe and in the wider sector (such as funding, performance, development and discount

opportunities).

Over the past 12 months Fringe Connect has hosted 47 events for more than 5,000 users (and counting). it's particularly useful for
helping prepare artists in the run-up to the Fringe and beyond —- some of our most well-attended events this year included:

¢ How to do a show at the 2022 Fringe (an online session in January that attracted 260 attendees)

e Making the most of the Fringe (June, 178 attendees)

e International touring: Models to take your work abroad (August, 48 attendees)

Most events at Fringe Central this year were recorded so they could be uploaded to Fringe Connect as a resource for artists who
were unable to attend in person and to grow the resources and information the Fringe Society can offer to artists year round.

Access for Artists
Ensuring the Fringe is as accessible as possible is important for both artists and audiences, and we continue to work with a range

of partners to identify areas where we can improve. We strive to make the Fringe the world’s most inclusive festival, and while there
is still much to do, we're proud of the steps we've taken to make the festival more accessible this year.

Working with Drake Music Scotland — the country’s leading organisation creating music-making opportunities for children and
adults with disabilities and additional support needs — we supported disabled artists to take over the St Andrew Square taster
stage, alongside other schools and community groups over three days during the Fringe. We were delighted to support Deaf

Action to stage its inaugural Edinburgh Deaf Festival during August.

We created opportunities for artists to work with a range of Edinburgh schools and community groups throughout the year,
ensuring the application process was as accessible as possible by creating supporting materials in large print, captioned video and

BSL video.

Fringe Street Events
The Fringe street events are an essential and iconic part of the festival. This year we expanded them beyond the traditional Royal

Mile and Mound sites and introduced taster stages to St Andrew Square and Cathedral Square where Fringe artists could perform
a snippet of their show. The street events programme featured more than 3,200 street performances during August 2022, including
650 on the taster stages. To ensure that our hometown is represented at the festival, we invited Edinburgh community groups and
schools to take over these stages for the final weekend of the Fringe.

Our street events plans were underpinned by a newly established Charter, created in colfaboration between the Fringe Society and
a representative Street Performing Council. Find cut more: bit.ly/StreetEventsCharter. The street events would not be possible
without the support of EventScotland and the City of Edinburgh Council. We would also like to thank TikTok, St James Quarter and

Nuveen for their support.

Voices from the South - Digital Engagement
As part of their Edinburgh 75 programme, the British Council supported the pilot delivery of an intemational digitai showcase to

support artist and industry engagement and test new ways of collaborating intemationally, following a period of research and
development in 2021. The cross-continental initiative is working to stage 16 artistic projects, from nations that would typically
struggle to attend the Fringe, digitally at Fringe 2023. Participants are from South Africa, India, Mexico, Argentina, Brazil and
Scotland. Further funding is being sought to develop the second phase of the project and bring a new international cohort onboard.

FringeMakers
Grants were awarded in early 2021 to distribute funds raised in 2020 through our FringeMakers crowdfunding initiative. Grants

were to support artists to make work for the Fringe and venues to showcase this work, with most presenting their work during the
2022 Fringe. The Australian platform, Smartygrants, partnered with the Fringe Society to pilot their system with us. They provided
the service, set up and training free of charge and helped us understand potential models of small fund distribution for the Fringe

Society.
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Relating to KPl: Maintain the value of the Edinburgh Festival Fringe to International Arts Industry

Marketplace
Fringe Marketplace is an online service that was conceived against a backdrop of lockdowns and travel restrictions that has

evolved and developed into a useful tool for the arts industry. It's aimed at creative sector professionals such as promoters,
agents and programmers at arts festivals and venues around the world, providing them with essential information and contact

details for tour-ready work at the Fringe.

This year we presented an upgraded version of Marketplace, with a curated selection of works nominated by their host venues
sitting alongside a comprehensive directory of shows from artists with an expressed interest in further touring. 194 shows from
this year's Fringe will remain on Marketplace until June next year, giving industry members the chance to refresh their memory

or catch up with shows they missed.

Thank you to the vital support of DCMS for the development of Marketplace in 2021 and 2022.

Screen Fringe
Among the many career pathways the Fringe offers for creatives, it provides a vital step for many writers, actors, comics and others

looking to break into TV and film. Screen Fringe is a collaborative project with Screen Scotland, which aims to help Fringe artists
engage with the national and international TV and film industry.

Screen Fringe was a great success in 2022, with engagement from high-profile TV, digital content and film industry figures from
the likes of Film4, Netflix, Universal and Big Talk. This would not have been possible without the support of Screen Scotland.

Screen Fringe has been an excellent addition to our slate of services to the Fringe community and will develop and grow in the
coming years. .

Emerging Producers’ Development Programme
Our Emerging Producers'Development Programme is designed to help early-career producers get started at the Fringe. Places

were prioritised for producers who identified as disabled, working class and / or part of the global majority; with the help of
Something to Aim For, we selected 15 participants who received a tailored programme of professional development events that

catered to their needs and interests.

International Showcases
This year's festival was the first full-scale Fringe since the UK exited the European Union, and as such we found ourselves providing

a much greater level of support for intemational artists from EU countries. Many visiting companies, for example, required welcome
letters to enter the UK. The Fringe Society will continue to advocate for ongoing support of the festival's permit-free status, making it

easier and cheaper for international artists to perform in the UK.

Fringe Society staff shared ideas with cultural organisations from around the world this year, including:
« the 2022 Fringe World Congress in Orlando, Florida (USA)
arts markets in New Zealand and Australia

Polish Cuitural institute
Brussels Major Events (Belgium).

L ]

¢ the Yokohama international Performing Arts Meeting (YPAM, Japan)
e Chingay Parade Singapore

»  Micinsky Pitvor (Slovakia)

[ ]

[ ]

Belgium (Wallonia), Denmark, England, Finland, France, Ireland, Korea, Northem Ireland, Québec, Taiwan, Scotiand, Switzerland and
Wales all presented showcases at the 2022 Fringe, while organisations from Australia, Brazil, Canada, Italy and Japan supported
work from their respective nations. Our Arts Industry team also engaged with intemational delegations from Brazil, Canada, Finland,
Germany, Japan, New Zealand, Québec and Creative Europe during the Fringe.
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Relating to KPI: Delivery of the core services of the Fringe Society, aligned to the strategic priorities established in the

Fringe Blueprint and Fringe Development Goals.

Helping Audiences

One of the Fringe Society's key objectives is to help audiences navigate the Fringe with comprehensive and up-to-date information
and ticketing. This work is all an extension of our commitment to supporting artists — it'’s about ensuring they and their audiences

can find each other.

We provide a centralised website and box office where audiences can browse, find information and book tickets for every show on
the Fringe. This year, between June and August alone, edfringe.com received more than 36 million pageviews from 2.5 million
visitors. While we were not able to secure the funds to bring the Fringe App back in 2022, we invested heavily in our digital
infrastructure, making payments more secure and helping people navigate the myriad shows on offer, including Nearby Now and a
ticket wallet in your online account. We will be investing revenue generated in 2022 to bring a new Fringe App to the market for

2023.

Following a successful pilot at Fringe 2021, we rolled out e-ticketing across the entire festival, with physical tickets still available to
anyone for whom e-tickets presented an access barrier. The Half Price Hut returned in August at a new location at 180 High Street,
enabling audiences to take a chance on new discoveries by buying half-price tickets for participating shows taking place that day

or the following moming.

The Fringe printed programme retumed this year for the first time since 2019, with a new section listing enhanced performances that
featured BSL interpretation, captioning, audio description and relaxed performances. The programme was available to pre-order for
home delivery from the end of March, and to collect in person —~ from 800 outlets across the UK — from early July.

Foliowing the Fringe, we conducted a survey with more than 9,000 ticket buyers to better understand our customers'experiences and
to identify ways we can refine and improve our services. This was part of a broader effort to gather feedback from across the Fringe
landscape - including from artists, venues and workers — that will form the basis for our preparations for Fringe 2023 and beyond.

We would like to thank Johnnie Walker Princes Street for their support of e-ticketing this year.

Access for Audiences
While there remains much to do, we have continued to see progress in breaking down barriers for d/Deaf and Disabled artists and

audiences. Our access bookings service is our primary point of contact for anyone with an access requirement who's interested in
coming to the festival. It's available by phone, via text message, in person and by email, and can assist with booking tickets (including
free tickets for personal assistants), finding out venue access information and booking specific accessibility services, for example a
hearing loop, audio description headsets, captioning units or seating in relation to the location of the BSL interpreter. We've put
considerable development work into our ticketing system to enhance and streamline these services and will be able to start rolling

these out on edfringe.com over the coming years.

We lent audio description and captioning equipment to companies to enable them to offer more accessible performances, with
equipment also shared by Zoo Venues and fundraised income from a Fringe supporter.

Every year we ensure Fringe Society staff have the necessary training to provide excellent service to all customers, inciuding those
with access requirements; we also provide this training as an online resource for staff across the Fringe, so the whole festival can

be as welcoming as possible to all.

Since 2018 we've been providing free sensory backpacks for people who find the festival environment overwhelming, such as autistic
children and adults. In partnership with venues across the city centre (including Assembly George Square, the Scottish Storytelling
Centre and Greenside Infirmary Street), we were able to provide 150 sensory backpacks to Fringe attendees this year. A special
thanks to Lothian Trams and Transport for Edinburgh for their donation of squashy tram stress toys that were included in the

backpacks.

We worked with Deaf Action to provide BSL interpretation of the street events at West Parliament Square across five dates in
August, our most yet. We ensure all Fringe Society events have BSL intempretation. We used our convening role and advocacy to
support Deaf Action to establish the first ever Deaf Festival within the Fringe, including the first Deaf rave at the undergroup
carpark at St. Jame's Centre. The festival was a huge success and is set to continue and grow in coming years.

We once again provided a dedicated Changing Places toilet beside George Square for the duration of the festival. Changing
Places are accessible toilets with an adult-sized changing bench and hoist, for people who are unable to use a standard accessible
toilet — we’d like to thank Assembly Festival and University of Edinburgh for their help with Changing Places this year.
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Following the interruption of the past few years, we brought back the Venue Access Award in 2022, which highlights those Fringe
venues with the strongest approach to meeting access requirements. Thirty-four venues continued in the scheme, with three more
achieving the maximum rating. We also distributed Fringe vouchers to Euan’s Guide, an outlet publishing disabled access reviews,
so that their reviewers could report back independently on Fringe venues’accessibility.

Community and education engagement - Fringe Days Out

Fringe Days Out provides Edinburgh-based charities, schools and community groups with Fringe ticket vouchers and bus day tickets,
allowing them to experience the Fringe and make the most of the festival that takes place on their doorstep each year. The project
is specifically for people who are at risk of social exclusion — we work with a broad range of people,including refugees and asylum
seekers, single parents, isolated elderly people, disabled people, ethnic minority communities, young people identifying as lesbian,
gay, bisexual or transgender and people from areas of multiple deprivation. This year we added another school as part of Fringe Days

Out; we now work with 30 community groups and three schools across Edinburgh.

More than 3,300 people took part in Fringe Days Out in 2022. This brings the total number of attendees to over 12,500 since it
launched in 2017, many of whom have visited the festival for the first time thanks to the project. The number of vouchers redeemed
this year was over 80%, one of the highest rates in the project's history. We believe this is a testament to the hard work of our
Community Engagement team in building and strengthening relationships with partner organisations. The project's long-term nature
gives participants the chance to build up confidence in visiting the festival year on year. ’

We were able to provide additional support this year by:
+ providing opportunities for community groups to perform on our street events stage in St Andrew Square

e amranging for Fringe performers to perform 20 pop-up shows in community spaces outside the city centre in summer, giving
locals a Fringe experience in their own area
* hosting a Fringe taster day in Wester Hailes.

We would like to thank Baillie Gifford for their generous support of Fringe Days Out.

Teachers Theatre Club i »
Teachers Theatre Club (run in-partnership with Imaginate) continued to meet online and were able to attend live work at points

throughout the year, including during the Fringe. We continue to include the year one and two cohorts to help support this, and as
a resuit have seen high levels of engagement and collaboration with teachers. The group are a valuable peer support network, as
well as continuing to grow engagement and knowledge of live performance in our City’s teachers.

Sustainability
The Fringe Society is committed to reducing the festival's carbon faotprint and championing initiatives that limit our impact on the

environment and those of the wider Fringe landscape. The Fringe Society signed the Edinburgh Climate Compact in 2020,
supporting the City's carbon zero plans for 2030.

Building on consuitations with our stakeholders, our sustainability priorities remain:
¢ to continue to provide Fringe participants with tools that help them consider the environmental impact of the work

they produce at the Fringe
¢ to work with our partners and stakeholders to communicate our sustainable agenda both externally and internally

* to embed environmental, economic and social sustainability across our core business.

As part of the Fringe Development Goals we aimed to plant 75,000 native and ecologically beneficial trees across Scotland over
the next five years. The first 75 of these were planted in our home city of Edinburgh in February 2023, working with local community
organisations, in this first instance, the Friends of Inverleith Park. We are working with Forth Resource Management/Caledonian
Horticulture who are experts in sustainability, circular resource management, environmental restoration and other sustainable
services across the region. We are planning a visit in March 23 to our next tree-planting location with a more ambitious number to

be planted at Balerno Farm.

Diversity in the Fringe Board and membership
We are committed to ensuring our members and potential members can help us build a more representative board, including people

of different ethnicities, young people, Edinburgh residents, working-class people and D/deaf and disabled people. We will continue
to reach out to a range of organisations and community groups to spread the word and encourage candidates within their networks
to apply, including Black and Ethnic Minority Infrastructure in Scotland (BEMIS), the Council of Ethnic Minority Voluntary
Sector Organisations (CEMVO), The Sick of the Fringe, Equity, Scottish Refugee Council, Euan's Guide and Parents and Carers in
the Performing Arts, to support a diverse range of nominees to the board of the Fringe Society.

To help ensure as diverse a range of voices as possible and that cost is not a barrier to becoming a member of the Fringe Society
we have maintained annual membership at £5 in 2022.
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Sponsors, supporters and partners

Cirrus Logic
Cirrus Logic were a new partner in 2022, supporting the core delivery of the Fringe Society alongside celebrating and sharing the

Fringe with their employees in their Edinburgh Office. Cirrus Logic provided employment for Fringe artists through their weekly in-
house event, supported Fringe Friends events, and were integral to the success of e-ticketing thanks to their networks in mobile
technology. We're grateful for Cirrus Logic’s ongoing support and engagement with the Fringe and the Fringe Society.

Edinburgh Gin
Edinburgh Gin joined us in 2021 as a founding supporter of our Save the Fringe campaign, pledging up to £150,000 in profit from

the sales of an exclusive gin bottle designed by Phoebe Waller-Bridge. Funds continue to be received to the fundraising campaign
and Edinburgh Gin are exploring new ways to support the Fringe.

Johnnie Walker Princes St
Johnnie Walker supported the Fringe Society during the pandemic, and we are grateful to them for their donations during this

challenging time. Johnnie Walker Princes St opened in September 2021, and our partnership evolved to focus on this incredible
new visitor attraction and its role in the offer to visitors during the Fringe. Alongside support of the e-ticketing joumey, Johnnie
Walker Princes St also hosted events for the Fringe Saciety in their iconic space on Princes St and supported Fringe artists through
direct employment at their own events in their newly launched Label Studio. We are grateful to Johnnie Walker Princes St for their

continued and ongoing support.

TikTok
New in 2022, TikTok's partnership with the Fringe Society was centred around supporting and nurturing artistic talent, skills

development and finding your audience. TikTok supported Fringe Central, basing themselves onsite to train and support artists
who were keen to explore how TikTok could help them find their voice in a digital world and their fanbase. TikTok also supported
activities within the Fringe Street Events, including a pop-up activation on the Mound to engage audiences, a secret gig to build
conversation around the Fringe on TikTok and the support of a digital agency to launch and grow the @edfringe channel on TikTok
and support the wider Fringe to engage with the millions of users on their platform.

Fringe Friends, Fringe Patrons and Fringe Angels
The Fringe Friends are huge fans of the Fringe and showcase their support by attending huge volumes of shows, often seeking out

the lesser known and emerging Fringe acts. They're bold and risk taking in their approach and are loyal advocates of the Fringe
throughout the year. Our 4,000 Friends purchased over £1Mn of tickets and saw hundreds of performances, ticketed and free, with
less than 10% of those included in the Friends discount scheme — they truly are the core of the Fringe fanbase.

We made some changes in 2022 to address feedback from producers, artists and venues, with an off-peak only offer and not
including the logo on eligible shows in the programme (which supported the later planning cycle for artists due to ongoing uncertainty
due to covid-19) - feedback in response to this from Friends will be factored into delivery for 2023 and we will continue to review
and iterate on this programme design to ensure it remains an effective way for audiences to find new shows without undermining

the ticketing revenue that artists and venues rely on for delivery and future success.

We'd like to thank all of our Friends, Patrons and Angels for their ongoing support and commitment to the Fringe and applaud their
approach to discovering new work at the Fringe each year.

Partners and Collaborations

IRN BRU
IRN BRU presented Canned Laughter on the Mound Precinct in the final week of the Fringe. They installed a six-seater mini-

cinema, shaped like a can of their iconic Scottish juice! A focal point for media and audience engagement, it also presented Scottish
comedians to new audiences, commissioning new and exclusive content for TikTok and their activation.

St James Quarter
We worked with the St James Quarter to find a temporary home for Fringe Central and to test new sites for Street Events and other

performances in new and surprising places. We'd like to thank the St James Quarter for their practical support, commitment to the
Fringe and their investment in Fringe Street Events for 2022.
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Working Together

City of Edinburgh Council
The Fringe Saciety continues to maintain a strong relationship with the City of Edinburgh Council and places great importance on

the strategic, logistical and financial support it provides and its vital role in the continued success of the Edinburgh Festival Fringe,
now more than ever. The.City of Edinburgh Council provided vital support for the Street Events to return in 2022. This relationship
will be increasingly important as we face the challenges of post-Covid affordability of Edinburgh for artists, and in particular the

depletion of affordable accommodation stock.

Event Scotland
With funding for the Street Events, Event Scotland supported the return of this iconic piece of the Fringe landscape. We'd like to

thank Event Scotland for their support and commitment to the Fringe Street Events.

Festivals Edinburgh
Established in 2007, Festivals Edinburgh provides a platform for Edinburgh’s major festivals to work together to sustain and develop

Edinburgh’'s position as the world's feading festival destination. Throughout 2022 Festivals Edinburgh have continued to
provide support, lobbying and collective representation, as well as engaging more widely in the Scottish events sector through the
Events Industry Advisory Group established by Event Scotland.

Scottish Enterprise
Alongside their engagement with the resilience group, Scottish Enterprise have provided expert advice and support on a range of

subjects, including Intellectual Property, financial modeiling and commercial development of the box office.

Department for Digital, Cuiture, Media and Sport
Through Arts Council England and Festivals Edinburgh, DCMS supported the development of the Marketplace platform and an

upgrade and enhancement of the services offered to Arts Industry focusing on the sustained opportunity for tour ready work to be
_booked, bought, toured regionally and exported oversees, completed in 2022. Funding included pilot programmes with other sector
development festivals in the city to understand the wider value of Industry engagement within different and/or more niche cultural

sectors; Jazz and Blues and Performance for Children.

British Council
British Council funded the research and development of Voices from the South, and invested in its pilot delivery year in 2022. British

Council continue to support the Fringe Society to grow and develop relationships with international partners and to help realise
collaboration opportunities.

Other activities

Made in Scotland is a showcase of Scotland's brightest dance, music and theatrical talent that takes place every year at the Fringe.
A partnership between the Fringe Society, Creative Scotland, the Federation of Scottish Theatre and Scottish Music Centre, this
year's Made in Scotland featured 27 shows, the biggest programme in its 14-year history.

New for 2022 was the Made in Scotland delegate programme, developed to foster deeper connections between arts industry
professionals and Made in Scotland artists. Our Artist Development team also held regular online meetings and one-to-ones with
the artists, plus a series of in-person events during August, to help develop their tour ambitions and build a sense of community
among those included in the programme. This work to bring together artists and industry provides robust opportunities for shows

to tour internationally.

Festival Fringe Trading Limited
Festival Fringe Trading Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society. The core activities of the

company are the sale of merchandise relating to the Edinburgh Festival Fringe and the provision of information regarding the
Edinburgh festivals and tourism. The Festival Fringe Trading Company also manages income from sponsorship and contracts for
Fringe Box Office {(see below) for the Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society.

180 Box Office
The development of the agency Box Office — rebranded as 180 Box Office — has been significant in 2022. 180 Box Office has a

new brand and web presence, as well as some new clients in the events sector. 180 Box Office is a priority for the Fringe Society
in our recovery. We are developing a box office service for the arts and community sector that is ethical, fairly-priced, transparent,

~ and focused on building and retaining jobs and income in Scotland. We are grateful to Scottish Government and Scottish Enterprise
for their support in developing this work during 2021, which has contributed to the successes in 2022.
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Financial Review
Our core priority as we entered 2022 was to ensure we could deliver the core services and systems required by the Fringe

community and stakeholder base to deliver a safe and successful festival. With funds depleted from 2020 and little recovery in
2021, our focus was to maintain key services and the ability to build resilience for the Fringe for 2022 and future years.

Consolidated income in 2022 was £6,904,501. Income saw a return to a model similar to pre-pandemic but with notable fosses in
earned revenue from the festival delivery (fees and commission) and the loss of key recurring supporters for activities, including
Street Events. Income was received from covid-19 recovery grants, which will not be available to the Society or the Fringe in future

years.

Consolidated expenditure of £6,887,229 was incurred and overall in 2022, there was a surplus of £17,272.

Included in both income and expenditure are funds which are in effect redistributed by the Fringe Society. Firstly, through the
Venue Resilience Fund (funded by PLaCE),a total of £1.275Mn was received and then distributed in Spring 2022 to support venue
resilience. Secondly, in the current year a significant element of the handling fees were redistributed to artists and venues
(£463,518). Therefore on an underlying basis, the consolidated income for the Fringe Society was £5,165,983 and the associated

expenditure was £5,148,711. :

Reduced eamed income, alongside ongoing uncertainty over the Fringe 2022 delivery scale and costs, meant efforts were required
to reduce expenditure at the start of the financial years and to focus on the critical and universal services paid for by the festival
revenue. As a service organisation the core costs included staffing, technology, in-person services during the Fringe, and marketing
and audience development to promote shows and sell tickets.

Atthe end of 2021 we recognised the Fringe and the Fringe Society would need three to five year to recover, and evolve to changing
times and circumstances. At the end of November 2022 the final position of the Fringe Society was more stable, with increased
revenue (both eamed and donated) contributing to a better cash position than projected at November 2021. While this is positive,
it requires the board and Executive of the Fringe Society to balance the need to invest for recovery and the prudence required to

weather ongoing uncertainty.

Fringe 2023 planning assumptions

2023 will provide an ongoing challenge for the Fringe and the Fringe Society, with limited contingency and a tight balance between
revenue and cost of service delivery, against a backdrop of rising costs and uncertainty, both nationally and globally. As in previous
years, the board of the Fringe Society will have to make choices and prioritise key delivery and investment in both the short and

medium term.

Survival for many in the sector, and many in the Fringe, was dependent on emergency funds made available as a direct result of
the pandemic; it is highly unlikely any funds of this nature will be available in 2023, and there is an ongoing cost of living crisis
impacting many of our key stakeholders, notably Fringe artists, most of whom take the financial risk to bring their work to the Fringe.
The Fringe Society has sought to reduce its core cost base whilst operating at an annual loss, but this is not sustainable and there
are significant demands from the sector for a full suite of service delivery without an increase in charges. While the Fringe Society
enters 2023 with a view to long-term recovery and planning, there remain significant short-term challenges ahead for income and
investment to deliver the wide range of services required from our stakeholder base.

As a charity, the Society can access fund and grant revenue to support key areas of delivery (in line with fund criteria) which frees
up budget to deliver core services. We have also been successful in leveraging much needed resources, through sponsorship and
in-kind contributions to ensure we could stiil deliver for the Fringe and will continue to do this through 2023 to ensure new revenue
can be brought into the Fringe ecology. This requires human resources and capacity to focus on delivery for both the Fringe and
the Fringe Society and will help secure the long-term stability and service delivery of the charity.

Even with new investment the Fringe Society board and executive will need to ensure ongoing prudent management of income,
realistic projections, prioritisation of spend and ongoing recovery management. This means difficult choices on investment and
service delivery may be required to ensure the viability of our organisation.

Investment powers and policy
The trustees, having regard to cashfiow requirements, have kept available funds in an interest bearing deposit account rather than

longer term investments. Returns have therefore been low in line with bank interest rates, although these have increased in the
later part of the year due to changes in interest rates.
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Reserves Policy
The consolidated unrestricted reserves of the Fringe Society includes all Tangible Assets and Investment Property, as well as

Revaluation and Designated Reserves (where required - see note 21 for more information).

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the Saciety’s reserves policy in 2022, The reserves policy was as below:

The Fringe Society Board of Trustees has established that, in order to deal with any contingent liabilities should there be a shortfall
in funding between grants received, income generated by the Society and the Society's expenditure, a level of reserves should be
held. These reserves were depleted in 2020 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and have not been recovered due to the ongoing
economic impacts. Under normal circumstances this modelling indicated that 5 months expenditure cover would be a prudent
provisioning level. At expenditure levels in 2022 (excluding non-Fringe Saciety income) this would equate to around £2.3Million. As
a result of the significant deficits experienced in 2020, 2021 and limited profitin 2022, at the year end the Society held £765,431 of
consolidated unrestricted reserves. Free unrestricted reserves — being the unrestricted reserves without the value of fixed assets
and removing long term liabilities-as these are not repayable until after 2026 - would be £760,829.

As a result of Covid-19 and the ongoing economic impact the Trustees have had to assess the risks relating to the ongoing
pandemic and the impact on the reserves of the Fringe Society. Alongside the immediate recovery of the Fringe Society, the
Trustees and executive have developed plans to grow the cash reserves of the charity to support any future challenges, in line with
the Fringe Development Goals launched in 2022. However, as outlined further on pages 14 and 28, the Trustees consider that
current reserve levels, combined with future scenario modelling, are sufficient to warrant a going concern basis for the accounts.

Cyber Attack
In January 2022 the Fringe Society was subjected to a ransomware cyber attack. Many of our systems continued unaffected or

unexposed but access to some information was lost and operational data was unable to be recovered. No ransom was paid
however, and no ticketing or customer data was ever at risk. Our financial systems had been migrated as of 01 December 2021
onto new software which was not impacted and many historic reports had been collated for our 30 November 2021 year end so we
were able to complete these accounts in a robust manner consistent with prior years.

The Fringe Society reported the attack to OSCR, The Information Commissioners Office, Police Scotland and the National
Cybercrime Security Centre and are grateful to these agencies and our insurance provider for the support and expertise in restoring
operations at the Fringe Society and helping us prevent future attacks. This is now fully resolved, with ICO and OSCR issuing ‘no
fault’ notices. The Fringe Society's IT team built a new resilient architecture to both prevent future attacks and reduce the impact

where attacks are not avoidable.

Trustees' responsibilities in relation to the financial statements

The trustees (who are also directors of Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society Limited for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the trustees must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group
and the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of
the group and the charitable company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP (FRS 102);

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will

continue in operation.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the provisions of the charity's constitution. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for

the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable
company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may

differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Reference and Administration 16

Company number: SC046605
Charity number: SC002995

Registered Office
180 High Street
EDINBURGH, EH1 1Q8

Directors and Trustees
The directors of the charitable company (the charity) are its Trustees for the purpose of charity law. The Trustees and
officers serving during the year and since the year end were as follows:

BF Higgins (Chair)

FL Davis (Vice Chair)

JC Adams

HA Anderson

M Bronnikova

AC Campbeli-Baga

G Harkness-Mckinlay

K Koren

T Lang

PA Lowey (from 25 Aug 22)

JS Mackenzie

L Meredith Williams

TBB Mitchell (to 25 Aug 22)

MZ Panesh

TLM Stapleton

PM Utton

NR Weir

SL Young (from 25 Aug 22)

Key Management Personnel: The Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society

Chief Executive Officer: Shona McCarthy

Senior Management Team: Rachel Sanger (Head of Participant Services — Joint) — until 31 December 2021
Kevin Kimber (Head of Participant Services — Joint) — until 31 May 2022

Chris Snow (Head of Artist Services) — from 08 September 2022

Rebecca Monks (Head of Communications) — on maternity leave from 30 May 2022
Susan Russell (Head of Communications) — maternity cover from 30 May 2022
Lyndsey Jackson (Deputy Chief Executive)

Anne Diack (Head of External Affairs)
Secretary

Shona McCarthy

Bankers Auditors

Royal Bank of Scotiand Plc Henderson Loggie LLP

142/144 Princes Street Ground Floor, 11-15 Thistle St EDINBURGH
Edinburgh, EH2 4EQ EH2 1DF
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Structure, Governance and Management

Governing Document
The Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society is limited by guarantee and does not have any share capital. It is a registered charity

in Scotland. Itis governed by its Memorandum and Articles of Association dated 09 May 1969, and adopted on 21 November
2010, and amended last on 22 Aug 2017. The members of the Society, two at minimum, are those individuals who elect the

elected Trustees.

The management of the Society is the responsibility of the Trustees who are appointed or elected under the terms of the
Memorandum and Articles of Assaciation.

Appointment of Trustees
Under the constitution anyone can join the Society as a Member, the Board will consist of between 12 and 17 Trustees and

is made up of up to 12 elected Members, up to 4 appointed by the Elected Directors (Trustees) and 1 appointed Chair.

The Elected Directors (Trustees) shall be drawn from the following categories: 'show participants’ who either perform, or take
part in, or are connected in any way to a show or performance which is registered with the Society in the Society's festival
programme for the year in which they stand for election; 'registered venues' nominated by a venue which is registered with
the Society in the Society's festival programme for the year; and any other Member who has an interest in the furtherance of

the charitable objects of the Society.

A Member may stand for election as a Trustee in one category only.

Elected and Appointed Directors (Trustees) shall be elected or appointed for a term of four years and shall be eligible for re-
election or re-appointment for one further term of four years thereafter. They shall then stand down for a period of at least

one year but then may be re-elected or re-appointed as a Trustee.

Trustee Induction and Training

New Trustees are appraised of the Society, its structure, its governance, the content of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the Committee decision making process, the Business Plan and recent financial performance of the Society.
New Trustees undertake charity trustee training provided by an external party, and are also given a copy of the most recent

Annual Report.

Organisation
The Board of Trustees, which administers the Society has met at least quarterly in 2022. The chair is appointed on a four year term,

as per the Articles of Association. The Board appoints a Chief Executive to manage the day to day operations of the Society. To
facilitate effective operations, the Chief Executive has delegated authority within the terms of delegation approved by the Trustees,
for operational matters including finance and employment. The Chief Executive is Shona McCarthy, who was appointed on 14

March 2016.

The foliowing sub-committees are in place: Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, Fundraising Working Group, Commercial
Development Group, Fair Employment and Volunteering Working Group, Appointments Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Following a review, the board are working to develop a more flexible approach to committees to ensure the right skills and resources
are in place to support the executive on changing and emerging challenges.

Related Parties and co-operation with other organisations
The Society has a close relationship with the City of Edinburgh Council, which acts as the Society's landiord under a lease

agreement. The Society's wholly owned subsidiary, Festival Fringe Trading Limited, was established to promote the sale of
merchandise relating to the Fringe. The subsidiary gift aids the majority of its taxable profits to the Society. This year gift aid
amounted to £249,422 including £61,357 from 2021 (2021: £nil as paid after year end and including in 2022).

Key Management Personnel
The Fringe Society has a stated remuneration policy. Salaries for Senior Managers and the Chief Executive are benchmarked

against industry levels (with the Chief Executive Salary benchmarked by an external agency) and agreed by the
Remuneration Committee prior to annual budget setting.
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Key Risks

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee, on behalf of the Board of Trustees, has conducted a review of the major risks to
which the Society is exposed, and systems have been established to mitigate these risks.

Risks are considered in terms of their likelihood and their consequences and the Committee consider both the mitigating
factors and the assurances that may be in place (such as insurances) as well as the timescales for review and any resource
requirements. Key risks are outlined below. The Society seeks to maintain a level of reserves which acts as a generic
mitigant to risks to ensure smooth running in such eventualities albeit that reserves are currently significantly lower than

target following the pandemic. Edinburgh Festiva!l Fringe Society Limited is referred to as EFFS below.

Risk Impact Risk To Mitigation Assurance
Failure of Society objectives EFFS SMT re_porting to tl'!e board of trustees thfo.ugh Annu.al reporting and
strategic not being met the b.usmess planning committee - all a(‘:tiv.lty mee.tlng cycle f(?l’
planning, in considered through framework of thg m|55|on' Business Pl_annlng.
line with EFFS statement to ensu['e fit to strateglc aims. Audit |Annual Audit.
constitution process also considers appropriateness of Comprehensive
activity and fit to strategic aims. annual review
and open
access
principle
Failure of Breakdown of EFFS, Open and regular communication and Public AGM. Venue
relationships  communication, Fringe relationship management with Venues, land participant
with venues/  preakaway Constituents, jcompanies and landlords. representation at
participants/  venues/groups, public Regular Venue Manager meetings. Regular board
landlords/City Joss of income, mechanism to connect with producers. Regular
of Edinburgh  damage to mechanism to connect with artists. Ongoing
Council reputation, loss of engagement with CEC, University Of Edinburgh
cohesive Fringe, and other landlords.
oss of audience
confidence
Competitor Loss of income, EFFS, EFFS investment in staff, services, technology, {Scale of EFFS and
ervice oss of Fringe ervices, innovation and research. Open data  lrelationships with
roviders (box fegistrations, constituents, Jprotected by ring- fenced ticketing - EFFS only |venues etc.
ffice, app, closure of service |audiences lace to buy tickets for all shows at the Fringe,
egistration, delivery. Audience nd Digital and IT strategy focuses on ensuring
upport, dissatisfaction, hat remains (including investment to ensure fit
nformation, negative publicity, or purpose and future proof). Promotion and
festivals in damage to arketing of the Fringe services to participants
other cities) reputation, EFFS nd audiences.
no longer seen as
key to participation,
Edinburgh no
onger the focus of
rts industry and
ot seen as the
est platform for
rtists.
Temorist loss of life, loss of |EFFS, Serious Incident Management Planning, annual o
Event/activity - asset and building, |Public, Fringe |training on managing terrorist activity, leltec.! - depgndent
one off cancellation of Constituents |membership of Council EPOG, communication |on Palice advice
event(s) with Terrorist Police. EFFS to consider wider
Festival Training and support
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loss of key service

All code and software held in Escrow, Box office

Failure of |5 ovision to EFFS, All code _ scrow, Box .
major supplier [, ¢income license in perpetuity, EFFS retain admin rights |Professional
(box office, | oonoated through EFFS on all software, contract includes EFFS IP indemnity insurances
web.sne, apP.  |channel, damage rights, due diligence on all suppliers
edfringeware) to reputation
Failure to Loss of services, EEFS, Corg s_ervice delivery.budgeted i_n Iir?e with Fundraising anq
ecure reduction of value Fringe realistic and prudent income projections; ncome generation
ufficient funds f . Constituents, fadditional services delivered on a ‘funded’ basis
or programme ot services, audiences to ensure EFFS remains a Going Concern and
nd service damagg to does not commit funds for delivery where
delivery reputation, revenue may be uncertain
emergence of
competitor
services
Natural Loss of buildings EFFS, Limited - secure apd long stanging _buildings will [Insurances
disaster/loss of or other assets Fringe pffer some protection. Precautions in place
key utility tustomers, where possible (fire detection systems,

due to fire, flood,
storm etc. injury or

loss of life. bon circumstances. Communication with relevant
Interruption/closur uppliers and partners and where possible,

e of service ailover and disaster recover plans in place.
delivery

udiences

extinguishers etc.). Serious incident
management plan details specific plans based

Statement as to disclosure to our auditors

In accordance with company law, as the company's directors, the Trustees have confirmed that:
- so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware; and

- as the Trustees of the company they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint Henderson Loggie LLP as auditors will be put to the AGM.

By Order of the Board

Y

Benny Higgins (Chair)

Date

2023-07-26
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society Limited (the ‘parent charitable company') and its subsidiary
(the ‘group’) for the year ended 30 November 2022 which comprise the Consolidated and Parent Charitable Company Statements of
Financial Activities, the Consolidated and Parent Charitable Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Charitable Company
Cash Flow Statements and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accaunting Practice).
In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and parent charitable company's affairs as at 30 November 2022 and of the group's
and parent charitable company's incoming resources and application of resources, including the group’s and parent charitable
company's income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland)
Act 2005 and regulations 6 and 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the group and parent charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with _these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concem

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purpase of company law) use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concem for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this repaort.

QOther information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with-the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 '
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the trustees' report (incorporating the directors’ report) for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
« the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent charitable company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report included within the trustees’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities Accounts
(Scotiand) Regulations 2006 require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate and proper accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or retums adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent charitable company's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in preparing the directors’ report and from the

requirement to prepare a strategic report.
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Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 35, the trustees (who are also the directors of the parent

charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the trustees detenmine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group and parent charitable company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting
unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the group or parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative

but to do so. :

Auditor responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have been appointed as auditor under section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and under the

Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our

responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which

our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

As part of our planning process:

. We enquired of management the systems and controls the group and parent charitable company has in place, the areas of
the financial statements that are mostly susceptible to the risk of irregularities and fraud, and whether there was any known,
suspected or aileged fraud. Management informed us that there were no instances of known, suspected or alleged fraud;

. We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks applicable to the group and parent charitable
company. We determined that the following were most relevant: Health and safety legislation, employment {aw, and
compliance with the UK Companies Act, Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotiand) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts
Reguiations 2006

. We considered the incentives and opportunities that exist in the group and parent charitable company, including the extent
of management bias, which present a potential for irregularities and fraud to be perpetrated, and tailored our risk
assessment accordingly; and

. Using our knowledge of the group and parent charitable company, together with the discussions held with management at
the planning stage, we formed a conclusion on the risk of misstatement due to irregularities including fraud and tailored our

procedures according to this risk assessment.
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The key procedures we undertook to detect irregularities including fraud during the course of the audit included:
¢ Inquiry of management about any known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud,
Reviewing minutes of relevant board and other trustee or management meetings; .

Review of correspondence with the regulator, where applicable;
Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, and
Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments for

appropriateness. '

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is unavoidable risk that some material misstatements in the financial statements
may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). For instance, the
further removed non-compliance is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the auditor

is to become aware of it or to recognise the non-compliance.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s

website at https://www .frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our.report
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006, and to the charitable company’s trustees, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Reguiations 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members and trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, the charitable
company's members as a body and the charitable company's trustees as a body, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the

opinions we have formed.

Keith Macpherson (Senior Statutory Auditor) For and on behalf of Henderson Loggie LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

GROUND FLOOR, 11-15 THISTLE ST EDINBURGH
EH2 1DF Date 2023-07-26
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EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
(including consolidated income and expenditure account)
for the year ended 30 November 2022

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
Donations and legacies

Charitable activities

Operation of festival activities

Other trading activities

Investments

Total

EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds

~ Fundraising costs of grants and donations
Sponsorship and trading costs

Charitable activities
Operation of festival activities

Total

Net income/(expenditure)

Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):

Gains on revaluation of fixed assets
Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward
Total funds carried forward

Note

D 0 h

14/21
122
21/22

21/23

23

Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
331,975 - 331.975 214,048
3,628,234 1,980,051 5,608,285 2,267,333
945,650 - 945,650 229,200
18,591 - 18,591 20,266
4,924,450 1,980,051 6,904,501 2,730,847
8,396 - 8,396 2,078
461,560 - 461,560 143,097
469,956 - 469,956 145,175
3,985,619 2,431,654 6,417,273 2,532,619
4,455,575 2,431,654 6,887,229 2,677,794
468,875 (451,603) 17,272 53,053
(1,872) 1.872 - -
- - - 20,000
467,003 (449,731) 17,272 73,053
298,428 550,495 848,923 775,870
765,431 100,764 866,195 848,923

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All incoming resources
and resources expended were derived from continuing activities.
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CHARITY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
(including income and expenditure account)
for the year ended 30 November 2022

Unrestricted Restricted Total Funds Total Funds

Funds Funds 2022 2021
Note £ £ £ T

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:

Donations and legacies 3 331,975 - 331,975 214,048

Charilable activities

Operation of festival activities 4 3,628,234 1,980,051 5,608,285 2,267,333

Other trading activities 5 269,863 - 269,863 24,795

Investments 6 268,013 - 268,013 20,266

Total 4,498,085 ' 1,980,051 6,478,136 . 2,526,442

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds

Fundraising costs of grants and donations 7 8,396 - 8,396 2,078
' Sponsorship and trading costs 7 . . - 49

8,396 - 8,396 2,127

Charitable aclivities

Operation of festival activities 8 3,985,619 2,431,654 6.417,273 2,532,619

Total ’ 3,994,015 2,431,654 6,425,669 2,534,746

Net income/(expenditure) 504,070 (451,603) 52,467 (8,304)

Transfers between funds {1,872) 1,872 . .

Other recognised gains/(losses):

Gains on revaluation of fixed assets 14 - - - 20,000

Net movement in funds 502,198 (449,731) 52.467 11,696

Reconciliation of funds .

Total funds brought forward 219,636 550,495 770,431 758,435

Total funds carried forward 721,834 100,764 822,598 770,131

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year. All incoming resources
and resources expended were derived from continuing activities.
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CONSOLIDATED AND CHARITY BALANCE SHEET

as at 30 November 2022
Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021 .
Note £ £ £ £
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 14 549,602 660,386 549,602 660,386
investment Property 14 455,000 455,000 455,000 455,000
Invesiments 15 - - 100 100
Total Fixed Assets 1,004,602 1,115,386 1,004,702 1,115,486
Current Assets
Stock 16 14,116 14,886 - -
Debtors 17 731,464 399,736 989,048 335,352
Cash at Bank and in Hand ' 1,296,137 950,977 1,004,509 949,759
Total Current Assets 2,041,717 1,365,599 1,993,557 1,285,111
Current Liabilities '
Creditors falling due within
one year 18 {1,180,124) (591,466) (1,175,661) (589,870)
Net Current Assets 861,593 774,133 817,896 695,241
Total Assets less Current
Liabilities 1,866,195 1,889,519 1,822,598 1,810,727
Creditors falling due after
more than one year 20 (1,000,000) {1,040,596) (1,000,000) {1,040,596)
Net Assets 866,195 848,923 822,598 770,131
The Funds of the Charity:
Restricted Funds 21/22 100,764 550,495 100,764 550,495
Unrestricted Funds:
General 21/22 388,431 (78,572) 344,834 (157.364)
Revaluation Reserve 21/22 377,000 377,000 377,000 377,000
Total Charity Funds 23/24 866,195 848,923 822,598 770,131

These accounts are prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act
relating to small companies and constitute the annual accounts required by the Companies Act 2006 and are
for circulation to members of the company.

The notes on pages 27 to 39 form part of these accounts.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees on  2023-(3226and
are signed,on theirbehalfby: .. . ... .. ...
Fiona Darvig
1. Fiona Davis - 2023-07-26,22:2933UTC_ |
Fiona Davis '
Trustee Company No: SC046605
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ending 30 November 2022

Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £ £ £ £
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities .
25 410,719 (198,457) (129,113) (199,061)
Cash flows from investing
activities
Interest and rental income 18,591 20,266 18,591 (20,266)
Income from distributions from
trading subsidiary ‘ 0 0 249422 0

Purchase of tangible fixed
assets (7.429) (2,980) (7.429) (2,980)

Cash provided by (used in)

investing activities 11,162 17,286 260,584 17,286
Cash flows from financing

activities

Interest paid (5.084) (10,343) (5.084) {10,343)
Borrowing/(Repayment of -

borrowing) (71,637) (33,209) (71.637) (33,209)
Cash used in financial

activities (76,721) (43,552) (76,721) (43,552)
Increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents in the

year 345,160 224,723 54,750 (225,327)

Cash and cash equivalents at .
the beginning of the year 950,977 1,175,700 949,759 1,175,086
Total cash and cash

equivalents at the end of the
year 1,296,137 950,977 1,004,509 949,759
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NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 Novoember 2022

1 Accounting Policies
Legal status of the Company
Edinburgh Festival Fringe Society Limiied is a company limiled by guarantee registered in Scolland and has no share
capital. The liability of each member in the event of winding up is limited to £1.
The registered address of the company is 180 High Street, Edinburgh, EH1 1QS
The principal aclivities and nature of the charity’s operaling are detailed in the abjectives and aclivilies section of the
Trustees reporl on page 1.

a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Regorling by Charities: Stalement of
Recommended Praclice applicable lo charities preparing their accounts in accordance wilh the Financial Reporling
Standsrd applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102), the Financial Reporling
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand (FRS 102) and the Companies Act 2006.

The Saociety meels the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. Assels and liabilities are initially recognised at
aistorical cosl or transaction value unless otherwise staled in the relevanl accounling policy note(s).

These financial stat ts are pr ted in £ Sterling.

b) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Saciety's accounting palicies, the direclors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities thal are not readily apparent from olher sources. The
eslimoles and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other facters that are considered o be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors have made the following judgements:

- Tangible lixed assets are depreciated over a period la reflect their estimated uscful lives. The
applicabilily of the assumed lives is reviewed annually, taking into account factors such as

physical condition, maintenance and obsall ce

- Fixed assetls are also d as to whether thero are indicolors of impairment. This
assessment involves consideration of the ecanomic viability of the purpase for which the osse!
is used.

- Delermine whether leases entered into by the group as a lessor are operaling or finance
leoses. These decisions depend on an as of whether the risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred fram the lessor to the lessee on a lease by 'ease basis.

The following are the Groups key sources of estimation uncertainty:
The value of the investiment properties are valued by Chartered Surveyors using market
information of similar properties but there is an inevitable degree of judgement involved in that
each property is unique and value can anly ultimately be reliably tested in the market itself.
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c) Going Concern

The financia! siniements have been prepared on a going concem basis. The Truslees have considered relevant
information, inciuding lhe annual and long-term budget, forecast fulure cash flows and lhe impact of subsequent events
in making their assessment, The impact of the pandemic on the long-term recovery (of both the Fringe and the Fringe
Society) has informed forecasling and revenue plans to ensure these are reasanatble and achievable, including reduced
dependency on festival revenue o caver the cost of service.

in making these assessments the key scenarios and assumplions include; careful and considered management of
spend and growih, diversilication cf unrestricted income sireams, and the focus on growing audiences across the
festival in the ccntext of a changing sectar.

In the event that income grcwth plans do nat materialise, the Saciety has miligants it can put in place which include cost
reducticn and/or additional barrowing facilities which are in place il needed.

The Trustees have concluded thal these circumstances give rise to some uncertainty. However. given the result of
these assessments, including the measures that could be underlaken lo mitigate the current adverse impacls and the
current resources available, the Trustees are of the opinion Lhat they can continue to adopt lhe going concem basis in
preparing the annual report and accounts.

The financial statements do nat include any adjustment that may arise in the event thal the charitable company is unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

d) Group financial statements .
These financial stalements consolidale the resulls of the charity and its wholly owned subsidiary Fastival Fringe Trading
Limited on a fine by line basis. A separate Statement of Financial Activities and Income and Expenditure account are
presented for the charily ilsell as required by the Charities Accounls (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

¢) Operating Leases
The Scciety clussifies the loase of pholocopiers as operating leases. Annual rentals are charged to the Stolement of

Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the lease term.

‘FS Financial Statements 2022 Board Approved.pdf [2cOee189-afe2-4e59-a18d-569ed1e52222] Page: 30 / 42



EDINBURGH FESTIVAL FRINGE SOCIETY LIMITED 29

NOTES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 November 2022

f) Stock
Stock is included at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is campuled on a first in first aut basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price less the estimated cost of disposal. Provision is made for cbsolete and slow

moving items.

g) Income
Donations and legacies including donations, gifts and legacies and grants that provide core funding or are of a general

nature are recagnised where there is enlitlement. probability of receipt and lhe t can be n d with sulficient
refiability.
Such income is only deferred when:

- the donor spacifies that the grant or donalion must only be used in future accounling periods;
or
the danor has imposed conditions which must be met and are outwith the charity’s conirol
belore the charily has unconditional entilement.

Income from ather trading activities is recognised as it is earned.
Investment income is recognised on a receivable basis.

Income from charitable aclivities includes income received under contract or where entillement to grant funding is
subject lo specific conditions and is recognised as earned. Grant funding included in this category provides funding to
support activities and is recognised where there is ealitlemenl, probability of receipt, and the amount can be measured
wilh sulfficient reliabilily.

h) Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised when a liability arises.

Expenditure on raising funds are those costs incurred in altracting donations and legacies. and those incurred in trading
aclivities that raise funds.

Charitable activilles include expendilure associated with the festival activities and includes both Lhe direct cosls and
support costs of these activilies. Governance costs are exlernal audit fees, accounting and laxation fees including the
cosls of the portlolio accountanl, Truslees' expenses. AGM expenses. stakeholder engagement, cerlain conference and
evenl costs and a proportion af legal expenses.

Supgort costs include central funclions and have been allocated to aclivity cost categories on the same basis as staffing
costs. Stafling costs are aflocoted based on the underying activities of the roles involved and where appropriate on a

proportional basis.

i) Pensions
Pension contributions are made to an approved defined contrbution pension scheme. These are charged to the
Statement of Financial Activities in the year in which they are incurred.
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j) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assels are hold at cost and depreciated on a slruight line basis over their estimated useful life as loflows:

Investment Property No charge
Freehold/leasehold property 4%
Computer/box office equipmant 20%
Fixtures and fillings 20% & 25%

No capitalisaticn limit is in place, assets will be cagitalised at cost and depreciated based on estimated uselui life of the
asset.

k) Investment propertios
fnvestment properties are held al fair value and revalued at each reporting date through the Statement of Financial

Aclivities.

1) Reserves
The summarised movements of lunds analysed by category are shcwn cn the Statemeat of Financiatl Aclivities.

Restricted Funds
Restricted funds are funds which are to be used in accardance with specific restrictions imposed by doners. The cost of
raising and administering such funds are set agains the specific fund. The aim and use of restricted funds is set out in

note 22 of the financial statements.

Unrestricted Funds
Unresticted funds are general funds which are available for use at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the
general abjeclives of the Charity which have not been designated for any cther purpese.

Designated Funds
Designaled funds are general funds which have been idenlified for use in particular fulure projects by the Trustees but

are still available for use at the discretion of the Trustees, where translers are made fram he unrestricted to the
designated fund. The aim and use of designated funds is set out in note 22 of the financia statements.

m) Financlal Instruments

The Group has elected to apply the provisions of Sectian 11 "Basic Financiol lnstruments' and Section 12 'Other
Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102, in full, to ail of its financial instruments. Financial assets and financial kiabilities
are recognised when the Charity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, and are offset enly
when the Charity currently has a legally enforceabte right lo sel off the recagnised amounts and intends either to seille
on a ne! basis, or lo realisc the asset and setlle the hability simultaneously.

n) Financial Assels

Trade and other debtars aro recognised at the setliement amount due afler any trade discount offered. Prepayments are
valued at the amount prepaid net of any lrade discounts due. Cash al bank and cash in hand includes cash and short
term highly liquid investments with a short maturty of three months or less from the date of acquisition or apening of the
deposit or simifar account.

o) Financial Liabilitios

Trade and other creditars payable within one year that do not constitute a financing transaction are inilially measured at
the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any amounis
settled. Where the arrangement with a trade or other creditor canslitules a financing transaction, the creditor is initially
and subsequently measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rale of interes! for a similar
instrument. Where concessionary loans receivedthe charily has decided to not discount these inline with PBE34.87 of

FRS 102,
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2 Rclated party transactions
The company cwns 100 ordinary £1 shares in Feslival Fringe Trading Limited (Trading Company). Transactions

between the two parties in the year were as foliows:

The Sacioty charged management fees of £26,7 13 (2021: £26,713) to the Trading Company.
The Trading Company made Gift Aid poyments of £249,422 (2021: £nil) to the Society. The
payment of gift aid {or 2021 profits was made in 2022,

Al the balance sheet date, there was a batance of £571,447 due from the Trading Company o
the Scciety. (2021: £114,306 duc to the Saciely).

3 Donations and Legacies - Group and Charity

2022 2021

£ £

Company Membership 2,070 1,650
Donations 254,905 137.398
Grants - Cily of Edinburgh Councit 75.000 75.000
Unrestricted 331!975 214,048

4 Incoming resources from charitable activitics - Group and Charity
Unrestricted Restricted Toltal 2022 Unrestricted Restricted Total 2021

2022 2022 2021 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £

Box Office Commission
and Handling Fees

1,511,800 - 1,511,800 324,775 - 324,775
Fringe Registration
Fees 766,201 - 766,201 142,528 - 142,528
Advertising Income 351,283 . 351,283 22.736 - 22,736
Friends Registrations 152,118 - 152,116 99,774 - 99,774
Other Fringe Related
tncome €0,756 - 90,756 19,471 - 19471
Grant Income 292,560 705.051 997.611 379.665 1,278,384 1,658.049
Sub Total 3,164,716 705,051 3,869,767 988,949 1,278,384 2,267,333
PLaCE Venue Fund . 1,275,000 1,275,000 - - .
Handling Fee Rebate 463,518 - 463,518 - - -
Sub total 463,518 1,275,000 1,738,518 - - -
Total 3,628,234 1,980,051 5,608,285 988,949 1,278,384 2,267,333

Handling Fee income of £46'3.518 was given back to parlicipaling organisations as part of the Handling Fec Rebate

Scheme.
5 Income from other trading activitics Group Group Charity Charity
Unrestricted Unrestricted Unrestricted  Unrostricted
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Sponsorship Incame 622,709 133,422 17,000 (1.918)
Trading income (Retail Shop and Non Fringe Box 322,941 45,778 226,150 -

Olfice)

Management Charge - - 26.713 26.713
Total 845,650 229,200 269,863 24,795
6 Investment income Group Group Charlty Charity
Unrestricted Unrestricted Unrestricted Unrestricted
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Rental Income : 15,164 20,112 15,164 20,112
Bank Interest 3427 154 3427 154
Gilt aid from Subsidiary - - 249,422 -
Total 18,581 20,266 268,013 20!266
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7 Allocation of support and governance
The Sociely allocotes ils support costs as shown in the table below.
Costs of Expenditure Sponsorship
Festival  on Raising and Trading 2022 Total 2021 Total

Operations Funds Costs
Unrestricted

£ £ £ £ £
General administration 57177 - - §7.177 29,342
Premises 137,553 - - 137.553 61.983
Saciety IT and communications 152,909 - - 152,909 71,910
Training, recruitment and travel 41,934 - - 41,934 30,433
Depreciation/gain/lcss on sale 118,213 - - 118,213 120,669
Other expenses n 8,396 - 8.767 2.989
Non govemance legal expenses 31,210 . . 31,210 7,365
Governance costs 95,482 - - 95.482 42.394
Total Charity 634,849 8,396 0 643,245 367,085
Subsidiary trading costs . . 461,560 461,560 140.023
Subsidiary extemal audit . . . . 3,025
Subsidiary taxation charge ) . . . . .
Total Group 634,849 8,396 461,560 1,104,805 510,133

All support costs are allocated 100% (o Festival Operations except certain costs which are allocated directly. This
percenlage is based on slall usage. Legal and professional is allccated specifically il appropriate and otherwise under
the same policy.

All cosls of raising funds are unrestricted in 2022 (2021 - all unrestricted).

Governance costs includes external audit fees for the society. non-audit sccountancy and taxaiion fees and the costs of
the portfolio accountant, Truslees’ and AGM expenses and casls far stakehelder engagement, certain conference and
event costs and a proportion of legal expenses.

8 Analysis of charitable expenditure

Unrestricted Restricted
Festival Festival Total 2022 Totat 2021

Opcrations Operations

2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Support and gov costs (nate 7) 634,849 - 634,849 364,958
Staff costs 1,115,513 326,498 1,442,011 1,145,951
Publication costs 251,947 . 251,947 .
Marketing cosls 221,694 - 221,694 133,563
Projects and events 8,718 771,280 779,998 484,102
Box Office Costs 1,135,394 58,876 1,194,270 427,116
Digitat and Online 153,986 - 153.986 82,448
Sub Totat Charitable Expenditure 3,522,101 1,156,654 4,678,755 2,532,619
PLaCE Venue Fund - 1,275,000 1,275,000 -
Handling Fee Rebate . 463,518 - 463.518 -
Sub Total External Expenditure 463,518 1,275,000 1,738,518 -
Total 3,985,619 2,431,654 6,417,273 2,532,619
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8 Analysis of charitable expenditure {continued)

Grants
During the year as parl of the PLACE [Platforms for Creative Excellence] programme grants were made !o institutions in
the arls seclcr as follows (this fund is explained in ncie 21):

2022

£

Underbelly Lid 138,758
The Space UK 130.000
156,900

Pleasance Thealre Trusl
Gilded Balloon 148,669

Just the Tonic 148,000
Greenside Venues 133,779
Z0O Venues 75,000
Mankey Barrel Comedy 75,000
Assembly Festival Ltd 125,000
Summerhall Management Lid 82,510
Other 61,384

1,275,000

Total charitable expenditure was £6,417,273 (2021 - £2,532,619) of which £3,985,6 19 was unrestricted (2021 -
£1,732,602) and £2,431,654 was restricted (2021 - £800,017).

9 Analysis of staff costs (including key management personnel)

2022 2021

£ £

Wages and salaries 1,430,512 1,010,701
Social security costs . 133.858 93,559

* Other pension cosls 53,897 41,691

1,618,267 1,145,951

The <ey management perscnnel of the parent charily snd of the graup. comprise lhe trustees, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Senior Management Team. The 1otal employec benelits of the key management personnel of the charity
and he group were £372,036 (2021: £341,748).

No remuneralion was paid to the directors for Lheir services as Trustees o the Sociely. 18 lrustees received aggregate
expenses of £4,414 (2021: £2,979) during the yeor.

One employce was paid belween £70,000 - £80,000 (2021: nil) during the yoar and onc employec was paid between
£120,000 - £130,000 (2021: nit) during the year.

Grant income [rom the job retenticn scheme was received of £nil (2021 -£108.753). This is shown within income but was
used against staff costs.

10 Staff numbers (Group and Charity}
The average head count {no of stafl) during the year was as [ollows:

2022 2021

No. No.

Administration 12 1"
Markeling, press and publications 9
Digitaland IT 2
Box Office 14 0
Access 3 3
Participant services 14 8

53 33

_——
Note that above increase in lolol headcount relates mostly o box office activities which are slaffed internally this year
and were previously subcontracted.

The permanent tecam averaged at 29 staff (2021 - 30). The above numbers include the seasonal temporary staff also.
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11 NetIncoming resources

2022 . 2021
£ £

This is slated afler charging:
Ogcrating leases 5,040 5,658
Depreciation 118,213 120,669
Auditors remuncration-Audit (Group) 11,840 11,465
Auditor fee for non-audit services (Group) 800 800

Loan interest 5.084 10.343

12 Lease Commitments

Al 30 November 2020, the company had total commitments under non-cancellable aperating
leases as [cllcws:

2022 2021
£ £
Expiring in less than one year . 5,040 5.658
Expiring belween one and five years 8,820 13,860

Operating lease costs in the year were £5,040 (2020 £5,658).

13 Taxation

2021 2021
£ £

Taxation poyable

The trading subsidiary annually gift aids the majority of its surplus to the Saciely, 2022 : £249.422 (2021 : £nil).

14 Tangible fixed assets - group and charitly

Investment Frechold/ Computer Fixtures & Total
property Leasehold Equipment fittings
Property
£ £ £ £ £
Cost/Valuation
As at 1.12.21 455.000 1,177,557 177,107 357,287 2,166,951
Additions - - 4,800 2,629 7.42%
As at 30.11.22 455,000 1,177,557 181,907 359.916 2,174,380
Depreciation
Asat1.12.21 - 631,507 147,863 272,195 1,051,565
Charge for year - 46,995 13,974 57,244 118,213
As 8130.11.22 - 678,502 161,837 329,439 1,169,778
Not book value
As a1 30.11.22 455,000 499,055 20,070 30,477 1,004,602
As st 1.12.21 435,000 546,050 29,244 85,092 1,115,386

The company's flats are lreated as investment properties and have lherefore not been deprecialed in accordance with
FRS102. The properlies are stated al Fair Value and revalued periodically. The flals were valued with vacan! possession
at £455,000 on 19 January 2022 by DM Hali Chartered Surveyors LLP. The Trustees are satisfied that this reflects the
value as at 30 November 2022. Full title to the leasehold propenry will pass to the Saciely an the repayment of the loan
from the City of Edinburgh Council (note 21). :

The ariginal cost of the investmenl properties was £78,000.
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15 Fixed assct investments

Charity
£
100

Cost and nct book amount

At 1 December 2021 and 30 November 2022

The Scciety halds 8 100% investment in the £1 ordinary share capital of Feslival Fringe Trading Limited. a8 company
timiled by shares and registered in Scotland (SC130813).

Financial activities of the trading subsidiary
The financial resulis shown in the consalidated statement of financial activities include thcse of the charity’s whelly

2022 2021
£ £
Turnover 928,650 231.118
Cosl of sales ond administrative expenses (714,423) (169.761)
Interest receivable 0 [}
Not profit 214,227 61,357
Taxation charge 0 0
Distributions paid to the charity (249,422) 0
Accumulated Profit !35!195! 61,357

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary were:
Current assots 619,611 194,795
Current liabllities (575.911) ’ (115.800)
43,700 78,895

Ropresented by:

Share capital 100 100
Retained profits 43,600 78,795
43!700 78!895

Incoming resources from commercisl trading aclivities and commercial trading operations included in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Aclivilies represent the incoming and oulgoing funds from the wholly owned trading subsidiary,
the Trading Company, which is incorporated in the Uniled Kingdom and which pays a significant prepcrion of ils taxable
profits lo the charity by way of gift aid, 2022: £249,422 (2021: £nil but gift aid of all available profits (£61.357) was paid
after the year end). There is a £26,713 (2020; £26,713) Management Charge from (he Society o the Trading Company.
The charity owns Lhe entire share capita! of 100 ordinary shares of £1 each.

16 Stock
Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
: £ £ £ £
Stocks 14,116 14,886 - -
17 Debtors
Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Duce within ono year
Trade deblors 322,202 215412 27.047 36.722
Amounts cwed by group undertakings ) ) 571.448 114.306
VAT debtor 87,159 34,689 87.159 34,689
Other debtars 169,242 - 169,242 =
Prepayments and
acecrued income 152.861 149,635 134,152 149,635
Total debtors 731,464 399,736 989,048 335,352
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 ’ 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Trade Creditcrs 245,579 111,103 245,297 110,938
Tax and social securily costs 28,967 24,316 28,967 24,316
Loans (note 21) 79.205 110,246 79.205 110,246
Accruals and deferred inccme 826,373 345,801 822,192 344.370
1,180,124 591,466 1,175,661 539!870

Included within accruals and deferred income is an amount of £180,703 (2021: £140,973) relating to cash held by the
sociely on behall of a 3rd party for box office funds received for various eveals.

1

['-3

Doferred income
Included within accruals and deferred income is deferred income which relates to income received by Lhe charity, but for

which the conditions are not met.
Movement in deferred income account

Group Group Charity Charity

2022 2021 2022 2021

’ £ £ £ £

Balance as start of year 253,183 253,183 253.183 253.183

Amounts added in current year 423,480 112,500 423,480 112,500

Amounts reteased lo income from (253.183) (253.183) (253,183) (253.183)

Balance at end of year 423,480 112,500 423,480 112,500
20 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group Charity Charity

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Loans 1,000,000 1,040,596 1,000,000 1,040,596

The Cily of Edinburgh Council has provided a loan to finnnce the purchase of lhe investment praperty. Full title lo this
property will pass {o the Society on repayment of the loan. Inleresl is payable sl 5.15% per annum, the loan is
repayable over 20 ycars, and £79,205 was outstanding al 30 November 2022.

The Scottish Government provided a loan o Lhe organisation lo secure the [uture of the Fringe Scciely afier the
wilhdrawal of the physical Fringe in 2020. The loan is interest (ree and over a term of 10 years with repasyments staring

from November 2026 and being paid over the § year pedod lo 30 November 2030.

Group Group

2022 2021

£ £
Amounis pavable within 1 vear 79,208 110246
Amounts payable between 2 and 5 years 400,000 740.596
Amounts payable after more lhan § years 600,000 300.000
Tolal folling due after more than one year 1,000,000 1,040,536

Tolal ioan 1,079,205 1,150,842

The Royat Bank of Scotland hclds a floating charge over the assels of the Saociety.
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21 Analysis of charitable funds - Group and charily
Analysis of restricted fund movement group and charity

Fund at Incoming Resources Transfers Fund at

11221 resources exponded 30.11.22

£ £ £ £ £

Made in Scolland Grant . 119,520 (119,520) - -
PLACE (unding - 1,681,739 (1,691,739) - -
British Council 65,000 - {65,000) - -
2&::}2?:?""""’5 and Expo 317,150 63,850 (381,000) . .
Scovand Sereen . weo (17900 : .
Fringe Schools project 15.000 19,337 (34,337) - -
Save the Fringe 85.594 15,170 - - 100.764
Covid resilience funding 28,123 - (28,123) - -
Arlist and Venue Recovery 39,628 - {41,500) 1,872 -
Digital Bcost - 16,385 {16.385) - -
Agency Box Office Digilal Project - 36,150 (36.150) - -
Total restricted funds 550,495 1,980,051 (2,431,654) 1872 100,764

The following restricted income was received in the financial year;-

- The Made In Scotland Grant relales to grant funding from the Scoltish Gavernment Edinburgh Festivals Expo Fund
projecl. The project. managed through Creative Scotland. allows the Fringe to support and promole Scottish companies
in their aim to perform internationally, with production funds for showcasing managed directly by Creative Scotiand.

- The PLACE [Piatforms for Creative Excellence] programme is funded by the Scottish Government - through Creative
Scotland - the City of Edinburgh Council, and Festivals Edinburgh. Funding supports the development of Scoltish talent,
engagement with schools and community in Edinburgh and developing new initiatives lo support the Fringe's long term
fulure. Additional PLACE funds were secured in 2022 o supporl Fringe venues {£1.275Mn), Fringe Street Events and
Fringe Society core costs. Venue funds were dislributed as part of a competitive pracess, in collabaration with Lhe
funders and stakeholders.

- The British Council funding was given for research and developmenl work into a Digital Fringe Showcase and the
£65000 carried forward was for the pilot of a digital showcase and ongoing development in 2022.

- Screen Scotland funding supported the development of a focussed programme (o engage screen industry to the
Fringe marketplace, aligned to exisling Aris Industry services, with screen specific expertise and focus.

- Digital capability funds supported the development and defivery of online resources and services, including Fringe
Markelplace, Fringe Connect and the Digital Fringe Showcase. Funds were also to support pilot digitat engagement
programmaes for the Edinburgh Jazz and Blues Feslival and the Edinburgh International Children’s Fesitval,

- The Fringe Schoals project - (unds were given lo continue to develop our relalions with schools and support our Fringe
in Schools programme.,

- Save the Fringe funds were donated lo EFFS as a result of the launch of a fundraising campaign. These funds are fcr
the wider Fringe ecosystem and do nol form part of the Fringe Saciely's annual budget or spend. In 2022 the Fringe
Society will finafise the process for spending lhese (unds on aclivities and programmes that benelfit the Fringe, in line
with the Fringe Developmen! Goals.

- Covid resilience funding - funding to assist the Fringe be more resilient to the impact of COVID. through the Pivotal
Events Business Fund.

- The Creative Scotland Artist Fund was to support Made in Scotlond artisis lo develap digital assets for their work during
2021 and 2022.

- The Streel Eventls funding rom Cily of Edinburgh Council and Event Scotland was to support the safe delivery of the
Fringe Street Events in 2022.

- The Fringe Artist and Venue Recovery Fund was created through crowdfunding and contributions lrom carparate
danors and was used to make small grants in 2021 and 2022,

- Digital Baost funding supported the development and enhancement of core Fringe Saciely digilal lools, including
sesrch design on lickets.edfringe.com and the payoul process in our regislratk Rware, edlring e.

- Agency Box Office Digital Project supported the development of branding and digital assets for the agency box office,
18080x Office. 180 Box Olfice pays all prafits to the Fringe Sociely to support it's charitable aims, as well as oflering
affordable box offico sorvices 10 a range of festivals and events across the UK.

A transfer from unrestricled reserves was made to lop up the artist and veaue fund to the amount agreed to be spent.
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21 Analysis of charitable funds - Group and charity (continued)

Analysis of unrestricted fund movement - group

Fund at Incoming Resources Transfors/ Fund at
1.12.24 resources expended Revaluation 30.11.22
£ £ £ £
General fund (78.572) 4,924,450 {4.455,575) (1.872) 388,431
Revaluation reserve 377.000 - - - 377,000
298,428 4,924,450 4,455,575 {1,872) 765,431
Total Funds 848,923 6,904,501 (6.887.229) - 866,195
Analysis of unrestricted fund movement - charity only
Fund at Incoming Resources Translers/ Fund at
£ £ £ £
General fund (157,364} 4,498,085 (3,994,015) (1.872) 344,834
Revaluation reserve 377,000 - - - 377,000
219,636 4,498,085 3,994,015 1,872 721,834
Total Funds 770,131 6,478,136 (6,425,669) . 822,598
22 Analysis of charitable funds - Group and charity - previous year (2021)
Analysis of restricted fund movement - group and charity
Fund at Incoming Resources Transfers Fund at
1.12.20 resources oxpended 30.41.21
Made in Scotland Grant - - . . -
Madea in Scolland Grant - 165,000 (165,000) . -
PLACE funding - 166,667 (166.667) - -
British Council - 77.000 (12,000) - 65.000
Foyle Foundation ) . 40,000 (40,000) - -
Adapl and Thrive . 75,000 (75,000) - -
Digitol Capabilities and Expo - 369,000 (51.850) - 317.150
Crealive Scotland - Artist Fund - 57.000 (57,000) - -
Street Events . 200,000 (200,000) -
Fringe Schools project - 15.000 - 15,000
Save the Fringe - 85,594 - - 85,594
Covid resilience funding - 28,123 - . 28,123
Anisl and Venue Recovery 72,128 - {32.500) - 39,628
Total reskricted funds 72,128 1,278,384 (800,017) - 550,435
Analysis of unrestricted fund movement - group
Fund at incoming Resources  Transfers/ Fund at
1.12.20 resources expended Revaluation 30.11.24
£ £ £ £
General fund 346,742 1,452,463 (1,872,777) - (78,572)
Revalualion reserve 357,000 - - 20,000 377,000
703,742 1,452,463 {1,877,777) 20,000 298,428
Total Funds 775,870 2,730,847 (2,677,794) 20,0600 848,923
Analysis of unrestricted fund movement - charity
Fund at incoming Resources Transfers/ Fund at
1.12.20 resources expended Revaluation 30.11.21
£ £ £ £
General fund 32,307 1,248,058 {1,734,729) - (157,364)
Revalualion reserve 357,000 - - 20,000 377,000
686,307 1,248,058 1,734,729 20,000 219,636
Total Funds 758,435 2,526,442 {2,534,746) 20,000 770,131
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23 Analysis of net assets between funds - Group

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
2022 2022 Total 2022 2024 2024 Total 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 1,004,602 - 1,004,602 11 15,385 - 1,115,386
Net current assets N 760.829 100.764 861,593 223,638 550,495 774,133

Long term liabilities ;1.000.000% - {1,000,000) (1,640,596 - (1.040.596‘

24 Analysis of net asscots between funds - Charity

Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
2022 2022 Total 2022 2021 2021 Total 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 1,004,702 - 1.004,702 1,115,486 - 1.115.486
Net current assets 717132 100.764 817.896 144,746 550.495 695,241
Long term liabilities (1,000.000) - (1.000,000) {1,040,596) - (1,040,596)
721,834 100,764 822,598 219,636 550,495 770,131

25 Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash flow from operating activities

Group Group Charity Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Net movement in funds 17,272 53,053 52467 (8.304)
Add back depreciation charge 118,213 120,669 118,213 120.669
Deduct income Irom dislributions from - - (249.422) -
Deduct interesl income and rental (18,591} (20.266) (18,591) {20,266)
Add back interes! paid 5.084 10,343 5.084 10,343
Dcecrease (increase) in stock 770 16,541 - -
Decrease (increase) in debtors (331,728) (216,871) (653,696) (147,418)
Increase (decrease) in creditors 619.699 {154,405} 616,832 (154,085)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating actlvities 410,719 {198,457) {129,113) {199,061)
26 Analysis of changes In nel debt - group

l:u;\: ;ot Cashflows As at 30;;:: Cashflows As at 302';:‘2'
£ £ £ £
Cash in hand 1,175.700 (224.723) 950,977 345.160 1.296,137
Loans (1,184.051) 33,209 {1.150.,842) 71,637 (1,079,205)
{8,351) {191,514) {199,865) 416,797 216,932

Analysis of changes in net debt - charity
F;‘:: ;C: Cashflows As at 30;;;: Cashflows As at 30;;;;
£ £ £ < £
Cash in hand 1,175,086 (225,327) 949,759 54,750 1,004,509
Loans (1.184,051) 33,209 (1.150,842) 71,637 (1,079,205)
(8,965) {192,118) (201,083) 126,387 {74,696)
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